Table of Contents

33.01.02 - RULES OF PRACTICE AND PROCEDURE OF THE IDAHO REAL ESTATE COMMISSION GOVERNING CONTESTED CASES

000.LEGAL AUTHORITY.
001. TITLE AND SCOPE
002.WRITTEN INTERPRETATIONS
003. ADMINISTRATIVE APPEALS.
004. FINDINGS
005. DEFINITIONS.
006. CITATION
007.OFFICE OFFICE HOURS MAILING ADDRESS AND STREET ADDRESS
008. FILING OF DOCUMENTS NUMBER OF COPIES
009.EFFECTIVE DATE.
010.REFERENCE TO AGENCY.
011.LIBERAL CONSTRUCTION.
012.COMMUNICATIONS WITH AGENCY
013. SERVICE BY AGENCY.
014. COMPUTATION OF TIME
015. FEES AND REMITTANCES.
016.INFORMAL PROCEEDINGS
017. FORMAL PROCEEDINGS.
018. PARTIES TO CONTESTED CASES LISTED
019.PETITIONERS.
020.COMPLAINANTS.
021.RESPONDENTS.
022.INTERVENORS
023.RIGHTS OF PARTIES AND OF AGENCY STAFF
024.INITIAL PLEADING BY PARTY LISTING OF REPRESENTATIVES
025. TAKING OF APPEARANCES PARTICIPATION BY AGENCY STAFF.
026.REPRESENTATION OF PARTIES AT HEARING
027.SERVICE ON REPRESENTATIVES OF PARTIES AND OTHER PERSONS
028.WITHDRAWAL OF PARTIES
029.CONDUCT REQUIRED.
030.PLEADINGS LISTED MISCELLANEOUS.
031.PETITIONS DEFINED FORM AND CONTENTS.
032.COMPLAINTS DEFINED FORM AND CONTENTS.
033.MOTIONS DEFINED FORM AND CONTENTS
034. ANSWERS DEFINED FORM AND CONTENTS TIME FOR FILING.
035.CONSENT AGREEMENTS DEFINED FORM AND CONTENTS
036.FILING DOCUMENTS WITH THE AGENCYFACSIMILE TRANSMISSION (FAX)
037.FORM OF PLEADINGS
038. SERVICE ON PARTIES AND OTHER PERSONS
039.PROOF OF SERVICE
040.DEFECTIVE, INSUFFICIENT OR LATE PLEADINGS
041.AMENDMENTS TO PLEADINGS
042.ORDER GRANTING INTERVENTION NECESSARY
043.FORM AND CONTENTS OF PETITIONS TO INTERVENE
044.TIMELY FILING OF PETITIONS TO INTERVENE
045.GRANTING PETITIONS TO INTERVENE
UTO. ORANI I INO I ETT HONO TO INTERVENE

Table of Contents (cont'd)

046. FORM AND CONTENTS OF PETITION FOR DECLARATORY ROLLINGS	
047.NOTICE OF PETITION FOR DECLARATORY RULING	
048.PETITIONS FOR DECLARATORY RULINGS TO BE DECIDED BY ORDER	
049.APPOINTMENT OF HEARING OFFICERS.	
050. DISQUALIFICATION OF OFFICERS HEARING CONTESTED CASES	
051.SCOPE OF AUTHORITY OF HEARING OFFICERS	12
052.PRESIDING OFFICER(S).	13
053.EX PARTE COMMUNICATIONS	13
054.PURPOSES OF PREHEARING CONFERENCES	13
055.NOTICE OF PREHEARING CONFERENCE	13
056.ORDERS RESULTING FROM PREHEARING CONFERENCE.	13
057.KINDS AND SCOPE OF DISCOVERY LISTED.	13
058. WHEN DISCOVERY AUTHORIZED.	
059.DEPOSITIONS.	
060.REQUESTS FOR ADMISSION.	13
061.SUBPOENAS.	
062 NOTICE OF DEPOSITIONS, REQUESTS FOR ADMISSION, RESPONSES.	
062.NOTICE OF DEPOSITIONS, REQUESTS FOR ADMISSION, RESPONSES, OBJECTIONS TO REQUESTS FOR ADMISSION.	14
063.SANCTIONS FOR FAILURE TO OBEY ORDER COMPELLING DISCOVERY	14
064.PROTECTIVE ORDERS.	14
065.NOTICE OF HEARING	
066.HOW HEARINGS HELD	
067. CONDUCT AT HEARINGS.	
068.PRELIMINARY PROCEDURE AT HEARING	14
069.STIPULATIONS.	
070.ORDER OF PROCEDURE.	
071.TESTIMONY UNDER OATH.	
072.PARTIES AND PERSONS WITH SIMILAR INTERESTS	
073.CONTINUANCE OF HEARING.	15
074.RULINGS AT HEARINGS.	15
075.ORAL ARGUMENT.	
076.BRIEFS MEMORANDA PROPOSED ORDERS OF THE PARTIES	
STATEMENTS OF POSITION PROPOSED ORDER OF THE PRESIDING OFFICER	15
077.PROCEDURE ON PREHEARING MOTIONS	15
078.RULES OF EVIDENCE EVALUATION OF EVIDENCE	
079.DOCUMENTARY EVIDENCE.	
080.OFFICIAL NOTICE AGENCY STAFF MEMORANDA	
081.DEPOSITIONS.	
082.OBJECTIONS	
083. CONFIDENTIALITY OF SETTLEMENT NEGOTIATIONS	
084.SETTLEMENT NOT BINDING.	16
085.RECORD FOR DECISION.	16
086.RECORDING OF HEARINGS	16
087.DEFAULT PROCEEDINGS	17
088.RECOMMENDED ORDERS	
089. FINAL ORDERS.	17
090.MODIFICATION OF ORDER ON PRESIDING OFFICER'S OWN MOTION.	
091.CLARIFICATION OF ORDERS.	
092.STAY OF ORDERS.	
093. PERSONS WHO MAY APPEAL	
094.NOTICE OF APPEAL.	
	19

Table of Contents (cont'd)

200.RULEMAKING	. 19)
201 999. (RESERVED)	. 19)

IDAPA 33 TITLE 01 Chapter 02

33.01.02 - RULES OF PRACTICE AND PROCEDURE OF THE IDAHO REAL ESTATE COMMISSION GOVERNING CONTESTED CASES

RULES 000 THROUGH 017 -- GENERAL PROVISIONS

000. LEGAL AUTHORITY.

This chapter is adopted under the legal authority of Sections 54-2027, 67-5206(2), 67-5206(3), 67-5206(4), and 67-5206(5) Idaho Code. (7-1-93)

001. TITLE AND SCOPE.

These rules shall be cited in full as "Rules of Practice and Procedure of the Idaho Real Estate Commission," IDAPA 33.01.02, "Rules Governing Contested Cases". These rules govern formal actions, contested cases and rulemaking before the Idaho Real Estate Commission.

(7-1-93)

002. WRITTEN INTERPRETATIONS.

Written interpretations to these rules may be available in the form of explanatory comments from the Idaho Real Estate Commission, 633 North Fourth Street, Boise, Idaho, 83702. (7-1-93)

003. ADMINISTRATIVE APPEALS.

All contested cases shall be governed by this chapter.

(7-1-93)

004. FINDINGS.

The Idaho Real Estate Commission finds that due to the size of this agency, the frequency and nature of its proceedings, it is in the best interests of the Commission and those it serves to decline to adopt the Attorney General's Administrative Procedures Rules, particularly regarding contested cases, IDAPA 04.11.01, Sections 000 through 799. Further, the Commission has promulgated and adopted its own Rules of Practice and Procedure, which are set forth herein, IDAPA 33.01.02, Rules of the Idaho Real Estate Commission. (7-1-93)

005. **DEFINITIONS.**

As used in this chapter: (7-1-93)

- **01. Administrative Code**. The Idaho administrative code established in Chapter 52, Title 67, Idaho Code. (7-1-93)
 - **02. Agency**. The Idaho Real Estate Commission as created in Chapter 20, Title 54, Idaho Code. (7-1-93)
 - **O3. Agency Head**. The Idaho Real Estate Commission created in Chapter 20, Title 54, Idaho Code. (7-1-93)
 - **04. Chairman**. Chairman of the Idaho Real Estate Commission. (7-1-93)
 - **05.** Commission. Idaho Real Estate Commission. (7-1-93)
 - **06.** Contested Case. A proceeding which results in the issuance of an order. (7-1-93)
 - **07. Executive Director.** Executive director of the Idaho Real Estate Commission. (7-1-93)
- **08. Hearing Officer.** Person appointed by the executive director to hear contested cases before the agency. (7-1-93)
- **09. License**. A real estate broker, associate broker or salesman, corporate, limited liability company or partnership license as provided in Chapter 20, Title 54, Idaho Code. (7-1-96)

IDAPA 33.01.02 - Rules of Practice and Procedure of the Idaho Real Estate Commission Governing Contested Cases

- **10. Order**. An agency action of particular applicability that determines the legal rights, duties, privileges, immunities, or other legal interests of one (1) or more specific persons. (7-1-93)
- 11. Party. Each person or agency named or admitted as a party, or properly seeking and entitled as a right to be admitted as a party. (7-1-93)
- 12. **Person**. Any individual, partnership, corporation, limited liability company, association, governmental subdivision or agency, or public or private organization or entity of any character. (7-1-96)
 - **Provision Of Law.** The whole or a part of the state or federal constitution, or of any state or federal: (7-1-93)

a. Statute; or (7-1-93)

b. Rule or decision of the court. (7-1-93)

14. Rule. The whole or a part of an agency statement of general applicability that has been promulgated in compliance with the provisions of Chapter 52, Title 67, Idaho Code, and that implements, interprets, or prescribes: (7-1-93)

a. Law or policy; or (7-1-93)

- b. The procedure or practice requirements of an agency. The term includes the amendment, repeal, or suspension of an existing rule, but does not include: (7-1-93)
- i. Statements concerning only the internal management or internal personnel policies of an agency and not affecting private rights of the public or procedures available to the public; (7-1-93)
 - ii. Declaratory rulings issued pursuant to Section 67-5232, Idaho Code; (7-1-93)
 - iii. Intra-agency memoranda; or (7-1-93)
- iv. Any written statements given by an agency which pertain to an interpretation of a rule or to the documentation of compliance with a rule. (7-1-93)
 - **15. Rulemaking.** The process for formulation, adoption, amendment or repeal of a rule. (7-1-93)

006. CITATION.

The official citation of this chapter is IDAPA 33.01.02.000 et seq. For example, this sections's citation is IDAPA 33.01.02, Subsection 006. In documents submitted to the agency or issued by the agency, these rules may be cited as RPP (Rules of Practice and Procedure) and action number. For example, this rule may be cited as RPP 006. (7-1-93)

007. OFFICE -- OFFICE HOURS -- MAILING ADDRESS AND STREET ADDRESS.

The Idaho Real Estate Commission's office hours are 8:00 a.m. to 5:00 p.m., Monday through Friday, excluding holidays. The Commission's mailing address is P.O. Box 83720, Boise, Idaho, 83720-0077. The Commission's street address is 633 North Fourth Street, Boise, Idaho, 83702. The Commission can be reached by telephone at (208) 334-3285 and by fax at (208) 334-2050. A toll-free number for JTRS Relay Service (telecommunications for the hearing impaired) is 1-800-377-3529.

008. FILING OF DOCUMENTS -- NUMBER OF COPIES.

All documents required to be filed with the agency under this chapter shall be filed with the executive director of the Idaho Real Estate Commission and shall include the original document and two (2) copies. (7-1-93)

009. EFFECTIVE DATE.

Unless otherwise indicated, the effective date of every rule in this chapter is July 1, 1993. (7-1-93)

IDAPA 33.01.02 - Rules of Practice and Procedure of the Idaho Real Estate Commission Governing Contested Cases

010. REFERENCE TO AGENCY.

Reference to the agency in these rules includes the Commission, executive director, or hearing officer appointed by the agency. (7-1-93)

011. LIBERAL CONSTRUCTION.

The rules in this chapter shall be liberally construed to secure just, speedy and economical determination of all issues presented to the agency. Except as required by a specific rule or by statute, the agency may permit deviation from these rules when it finds that compliance with them is impracticable, unnecessary or not in the public interest. Unless required by statute, the Idaho Rules of Civil Procedure and the Idaho Rules of Evidence do not apply to contested case proceedings conducted before the agency.

(7-1-93)

012. COMMUNICATIONS WITH AGENCY.

All written communications and documents that are intended to be part of an official record for a decision in a contested case must be filed with the officer designated by the agency. Unless otherwise provided by statute, rule, order or notice, documents are considered filed when received by the officer designated to receive them, not when mailed.

(7-1-93)

013. SERVICE BY AGENCY.

The agency may serve summonses, complaints, and other documents by certified mail, return receipt requested, to a party's last known mailing address or by personal service upon the party, pursuant to Idaho Rules of Civil Procedure or by state statute. The agency must serve all orders and notices in a proceeding on the representatives of each party designated pursuant to these rules for that proceeding and upon other persons designated by these rules or by the agency.

(7-1-93)

014. COMPUTATION OF TIME.

Whenever statute, these or other rules, order, or notice requires an act to be done within a certain number of days of a given day, the given day is not included in the count. If the day the act must be done is Saturday, Sunday or a legal holiday, the act may be done on the first day following that is not Saturday, Sunday or a legal holiday. (7-1-93)

015. FEES AND REMITTANCES.

Fees and remittances to the agency must be paid by money order, bank draft or check payable to agency. Remittances in currency or coin are wholly at the risk of the remitter, and the agency assumes no responsibility for their loss.

(7-1-93)

016. INFORMAL PROCEEDINGS.

The agency recognizes, and this rule encourages, the use of informal proceedings to settle or determine compliance with agency rules or other matters. The agency staff, acting through the executive director, may informally resolve matters under authority of this rule when such action does not require an order issued by the Commission. Persons affected by an agency action under this rule shall possess the right to a formal proceeding as provided under this chapter.

(7-1-93)

017. FORMAL PROCEEDINGS.

Formal proceedings governed under this chapter are initiated by the filing of a complaint, petition, or other pleading before the agency. (7-1-93)

RULES 018 THROUGH 029 -- PARTIES TO CONTESTED CASES

018. PARTIES TO CONTESTED CASES LISTED.

Parties to contested cases before the agency are called petitioners, complainants, respondents, or intervenors. On reconsideration or appeal the parties shall be called by their original titles. (7-1-93)

019. PETITIONERS.

Persons who seek affirmative relief from the agency or to modify, amend or stay existing orders or rules of the agency, or to clarify their rights or obligations under law administered by the agency are called "petitioners". (7-1-93)

IDAPA 33.01.02 - Rules of Practice and Procedure of the Idaho Real Estate Commission Governing Contested Cases

020. COMPLAINANTS.

The agency when it charges a person(s) is called "complainant".

(7-1-93)

021. RESPONDENTS.

Persons against whom complaints are filed or about whom investigations are initiated are called "respondents".

(7-1-93)

022. INTERVENORS.

Persons who are permitted to participate as parties pursuant to Sections 42 through 45 are called "intervenors".

(7-1-93)

023. RIGHTS OF PARTIES AND OF AGENCY STAFF.

All parties and agency staff may appear at hearing or argument, introduce evidence, examine witnesses, make and argue motions, state positions, and otherwise fully participate in hearings or arguments. (7-1-93)

024. INITIAL PLEADING BY PARTY -- LISTING OF REPRESENTATIVES.

The initial pleading of each party at the formal stage of a contested case must name the party's representative(s) for service and state the representative's(s') address(es) for purposes of receipt of all official documents. Service of documents on the named representative(s) is valid service upon the party for all purposes in that proceeding. If no person is explicitly named as the party's representative, the person signing the pleading will be considered the party's representative.

(7-1-93)

025. TAKING OF APPEARANCES -- PARTICIPATION BY AGENCY STAFF.

The presiding officer at a formal hearing or prehearing conference will take appearances to identify the representatives of all parties or other persons. In all proceedings in which the agency staff will participate, or any report or recommendation of the agency staff (other than a recommended order prepared by a hearing officer) will be considered or used in reaching a decision, at the timely request of any party the agency staff must appear at any hearing and participate in the same manner as a party.

(7-1-93)

026. REPRESENTATION OF PARTIES AT HEARING.

- **01. Appearances And Representation**. To the extent authorized or required by law, appearances and representation of parties or other persons at formal hearing or prehearing conference must be as follows: (7-1-93)
- a. A natural person may represent himself or herself or be represented by a duly authorized employee or attorney. (7-1-93)
 - b. A partnership may be represented by a partner, duly authorized employee, or attorney. (7-1-93)
 - c. A corporation may be represented by an officer, duly authorized employee, or attorney. (7-1-93)
- d. A municipal corporation, local government agency, unincorporated association or nonprofit organization may be represented by an officer, duly authorized employee, or attorney. (7-1-93)
- e. A limited liability company may be represented by a member, a manager or a duly authorized employee or attorney. (7-1-96)
- **02. Representatives**. The representatives of parties at hearing, and no other persons or parties appearing before the agency, are entitled to examine witnesses and make or argue motions. (7-1-93)

027. SERVICE ON REPRESENTATIVES OF PARTIES AND OTHER PERSONS.

From the time a party files its initial pleading in a contested case, that party must serve and all other parties must serve all future documents intended to be part of the agency record upon all other parties' representatives unless otherwise directed by order or notice or by the presiding officer on the record. The presiding officer may order parties to serve past documents filed in the case upon those representatives. The presiding officer may order parties to serve past or future documents filed in the case upon persons not parties to the proceedings before the agency. (7-1-93)

IDAPA 33.01.02 - Rules of Practice and Procedure of the Idaho Real Estate Commission Governing Contested Cases

028. WITHDRAWAL OF PARTIES.

Any party may withdraw from a proceeding in writing or at hearing.

(7-1-93)

029. CONDUCT REQUIRED.

Representatives of parties and parties appearing in a proceeding must conduct themselves in an ethical and courteous manner. (7-1-93)

RULES 030 THROUGH 035 -- PLEADINGS IN GENERAL

030. PLEADINGS LISTED -- MISCELLANEOUS.

Pleadings in contested cases are called petitions, complaints, motions, answers, and consent agreements. All pleadings except motions, exceptions, and those made by the agency shall be verified. Affidavits or declarations under penalty of perjury may be filed in support of any pleading.

(7-1-93)

031. PETITIONS -- DEFINED -- FORM AND CONTENTS.

01.	Pleadings Defined.	All pleadings re	equesting the following	g are called "petitions":	(7-1-93)
-----	--------------------	------------------	-------------------------	---------------------------	----------

a.	License, right, or authority:	(7-1-93)

b. Modification, amendment or stay of existing orders or rules; (7-1-93)

c. Clarification, declaration or construction of the law administered by the agency or of a party's rights or obligations under law administered by the agency; (7-1-93)

d. Affirmative relief, order, or rule; (7-1-93)

e. Rehearing, or (7-1-93)

f. Intervention; (7-1-93)

02. Petitions. Petitions must: (7-1-93)

a. Fully state the facts upon which they are based; (7-1-93)

b. Refer to the particular provisions of statute, rule, order or other controlling law upon which they are based; and (7-1-93)

c. State the relief desired. (7-1-93)

032. COMPLAINTS -- DEFINED -- FORM AND CONTENTS.

01. Complaints Defined. All pleadings charging other person(s) with acts or omissions under law administered by the agency are called "complaints". (7-1-93)

02. Form And Contents. Complaints must: (7-1-93)

a. Be in writing; (7-1-93)

b. Fully state the acts or things done or omitted to be done by the persons complained against by reciting the facts constituting the acts or omissions and the dates when they occurred; (7-1-93)

- c. Refer to statutes, rules, orders or other controlling law involved; (7-1-93)
- d. State the relief desired: and (7-1-93)
- e. State the name of the person complained against (the respondent). (7-1-93)

033. MOTIONS -- DEFINED -- FORM AND CONTENTS.

01. Motions Defined. All other pleadings requesting the agency to take any other action in a contested case, except consent agreements or pleadings specifically answering other pleadings, are called "motions". (7-1-93)

(7-1-93)

- a. Fully state the facts upon which they are based; (7-1-93)
- b. Refer to the particular provision of statute, rule, order, notice, or other controlling law upon which they are based; (7-1-93)
 - c. State the relief sought. (7-1-93)
- **03. Other.** If the moving party desires oral argument or hearing on the motion, it must state so in the motion. (7-1-93)

034. ANSWERS -- DEFINED -- FORM AND CONTENTS -- TIME FOR FILING.

All pleadings responding to complaints, petitions, or motions are called "answers".

(7-1-93)

- **01. Answers To Pleadings Other Than Motions**. Answers to complaints or petitions must be filed and served on all parties of record within twenty-one (21) days after service of the pleading being answered, unless order or notice modifies the time within which answer may be made. When an answer is not timely filed under this rule, the presiding officer shall take such action upon the default as set forth in Section 087. Answers must admit or deny each material allegation of the complaint or petition. Any material allegation not specifically admitted shall be considered to be denied. (7-1-93)
- **02. Answers To Motions**. Answers to motions shall be filed by a party within fourteen (14) days of its service unless otherwise ordered. The person or party answering the motion must do so with all deliberate and reasonable speed. (7-1-93)

035. CONSENT AGREEMENTS -- DEFINED -- FORM AND CONTENTS.

Agreements between the agency or agency staff and another person(s) in which one (1) or more person(s) agree to engage in certain conduct required by law or to refrain from engaging in certain conduct prohibited by law, are called "consent agreements". Consent agreements are intended to require compliance with existing law. (7-1-93)

01. Requirements . Consent agreements must:		(7-1-93)

- a. Recite the parties to the agreement; and (7-1-93)
- b. Fully state the conduct proscribed or prescribed by the consent agreement. (7-1-93)
- **02.** Additional. In addition, consent agreements may: (7-1-93)
- a. Recite the consequences of failure to abide by the consent agreement; (7-1-93)
- b. Provide for payment of civil or administrative penalties authorized by law; (7-1-93)
- c. Provide for loss of rights, licenses, awards or authority; (7-1-93)
- d. Provide for other consequences as agreed to by the parties; and (7-1-93)

e. Provide that the parties waive all further procedural rights (including hearing, consultation with counsel, etc.) with regard to enforcement of the consent agreement. (7-1-93)

RULES 036 THROUGH 041 -- FILING, SERVICE, AMENDMENT OF DOCUMENTS

036. FILING DOCUMENTS WITH THE AGENCY--FACSIMILE TRANSMISSION (FAX).

An original and necessary copies of all documents intended to be part of an agency record must be filed with the executive director of the agency. (7-1-93)

037. FORM OF PLEADINGS.

- **01. Requirements For Submission Of Forms**. All pleadings shall: (7-1-93)
- a. Be submitted on white eight and one-half inch (8 1/2") by eleven inch (11") paper copied on one (1) side only; (7-1-93)
 - b. State the case caption, case number and title of the document; (7-1-93)
- c. Include on the upper left corner of the first page the name(s), mailing and street address(es), and telephone and fax number(s) of the person(s) filing the document or the person(s) to whom questions about the document can be directed; and

 (7-1-93)
 - d. Have at least one inch (1") left and top margins. (7-1-93)
 - **02. Form**. Documents complying with this rule will be in the following form:

Name of Representative Mailing Address of Representative Street Address of Representative (if different) Telephone Number of Representative fax Number of Representative (if there is one) Attorney/Representative for (Name of Party)

BEFORE THE IDAHO REAL ESTATE COMMISSION

(Title of Proceeding)) CASE NO.
)
(TITLE OF DOCUMENT)
) (7-1-93)

038. SERVICE ON PARTIES AND OTHER PERSONS.

All documents intended to be part of the agency record for decision must be served upon the representatives of each party of record concurrently with filing with the officer designated by the agency to receive filings in the case.

(7-1-93)

039. PROOF OF SERVICE.

Every document filed with and intended to be part of the agency record must be attached to or accompanied by proof of service by the following or similar certificate:

I HEREBY CERTIFY (swear or affirm) that I have this _____ day of _____, served the foregoing (name(s) of document(s)) upon all parties of record in this proceeding, (by delivering a copy thereof in person: (list names)) (by mailing a copy thereof, properly addressed with postage prepaid, to: (list names)).

(Signature) (7-1-93)

IDAPA 33.01.02 - Rules of Practice and Procedure of the Idaho Real Estate Commission Governing Contested Cases

040. DEFECTIVE, INSUFFICIENT OR LATE PLEADINGS.

Defective, insufficient or late pleadings may be returned or dismissed.

(7-1-93)

041. AMENDMENTS TO PLEADINGS.

The presiding officer may allow any pleading to be amended or corrected or any omission to be supplied. Pleadings will be liberally construed, and defects that do not affect substantial rights of the parties will be disregarded. (7-1-93)

RULES 042 THROUGH 045 -- INTERVENTION

042. ORDER GRANTING INTERVENTION NECESSARY.

Persons who claim a direct and substantial interest in a proceeding may petition for an order from the presiding officer granting intervention to become a party. (7-1-93)

043. FORM AND CONTENTS OF PETITIONS TO INTERVENE.

Petitions to intervene must comply with Section 031. The petition must set forth the name and address of the potential intervenor and must state the direct and substantial interest of the potential intervenor in the proceeding. If affirmative relief is sought, the petition must state the relief sought and the basis for granting it.

(7-1-93)

044. TIMELY FILING OF PETITIONS TO INTERVENE.

Petitions to intervene must be filed at least fourteen (14) days before the date set for formal hearing or prehearing conference, whichever is earlier, unless a different time is provided by order or notice. (7-1-93)

045. GRANTING PETITIONS TO INTERVENE.

If a petition to intervene shows direct and substantial interest in any part of the subject matter of a proceeding and does not unduly broaden the issues, the presiding officer will grant intervention, subject to reasonable conditions. If it appears that an intervenor has no direct or substantial interest in the proceeding, the presiding officer may dismiss the intervenor from the proceeding.

(7-1-93)

RULES 046 THROUGH 048 -- DECLARATORY RULINGS AND ORDERS

046. FORM AND CONTENTS OF PETITION FOR DECLARATORY RULINGS.

Any person petitioning for a declaratory ruling on the applicability of a statute, rule or order administered by the agency must substantially comply with this rule. (7-1-93)

- **01.** Form. The petition shall: (7-1-93)
- a. Identify the petitioner and state the petitioner's interest in the matter; (7-1-93)
- b. State the declaratory ruling that the petitioner seeks; and (7-1-93)
- c. Indicate the statute, order, rule, or other controlling law, and the factual allegations upon which the petitioner relies to support the petition. (7-1-93)
- **02. Legal Assertions**. Legal assertions in the petition may be accompanied by citations of cases and/or statutory provisions. (7-1-93)

047. NOTICE OF PETITION FOR DECLARATORY RULING.

Notice of petition for declaratory ruling may be issued in a manner designed to call its attention to persons likely to be interested in the subject matter of the petition. (7-1-93)

048. PETITIONS FOR DECLARATORY RULINGS TO BE DECIDED BY ORDER.

01. Final Agency Action. The agency's decision on a petition for declaratory ruling on the applicability of any statute, rule or order administered by the agency is a final agency action decided by order.

(7-1-93)

IDAPA 33.01.02 - Rules of Practice and Procedure of the Idaho Real Estate Commission Governing Contested Cases

- **02. Content.** The order issuing the declaratory ruling shall contain or must be accompanied by a document containing the following paragraphs or substantially similar paragraphs: (7-1-93)
 - a. This is a final agency action issuing a declaratory ruling; (7-1-93)
- b. Pursuant to Sections 67-5270 and 67-5272, Idaho Code, any party aggrieved by this declaratory ruling may appeal to district court by filing a petition in the District Court in the county in which: (7-1-93)
 - i. A hearing was held; (7-1-93)
 - ii. The declaratory ruling was issued; or (7-1-93)
 - iii. The party appealing resides. (7-1-93)
- c. This appeal must be filed within twenty-eight (28) days of the service date of the declaratory ruling. See Section 67-5273, Idaho Code. (7-1-93)

RULES 049 THROUGH 053 -- HEARING OFFICERS AND PRESIDING OFFICERS

049. APPOINTMENT OF HEARING OFFICERS.

A hearing officer is a person other than the agency head appointed to hear contested cases on behalf of the agency.

(7-1-93)

050. DISQUALIFICATION OF OFFICERS HEARING CONTESTED CASES.

Pursuant to Section 67-5252, Idaho Code, hearing officers are subject to disqualification for bias, prejudice, interest, substantial prior involvement in the case other than as a presiding officer, status as an employee of the agency, lack of professional knowledge in the subject matter of the contested case, or any other reason provided by law or for any cause for which a judge is or may be disqualified. Any party may promptly petition for the disqualification of a hearing officer after receiving notice that the officer will preside at a contested case or upon discovering facts establishing grounds for disqualification, whichever is later. Any party may assert a blanket disqualification for cause of all employees of the agency hearing the contested case, other than the agency head, without awaiting the designation by a presiding officer. A hearing officer whose disqualification is requested shall determine in writing whether to grant the petition for disqualification, stating facts and reasons for the hearing officer's determination. Disqualification of agency heads, if allowed, will be pursuant to Sections 59-704 and 67-5252(4), Idaho Code.

(7-1-93)

051. SCOPE OF AUTHORITY OF HEARING OFFICERS.

The scope of hearing officers' authority may be restricted in the appointment by the agency. (7-1-93)

- **01. Scope Of Authority**. Unless the agency otherwise provides, hearing officers have the standard scope of authority, which is: (7-1-93)
- a. Authority to schedule cases assigned to the hearing officer, including authority to issue notices of prehearing conference and of hearing, as appropriate; (7-1-93)
 - b. Authority to schedule and compel discovery, when discovery is authorized before the agency; (7-1-93)
- c. Authority to preside at and conduct hearings, accept evidence into the record, rule upon objections to evidence, and otherwise oversee the orderly presentations of the parties at hearing; and (7-1-93)
- d. Authority to issue a written decision of the hearing officer, including a narrative of the proceedings before the hearing officer and findings of fact, conclusions of law, and recommended orders by the hearing officer.

 (7-1-93)

(7-1-93

052. PRESIDING OFFICER(S).

One or more members of the Commission, the executive director, or duly appointed hearing officers may preside at the hearing as authorized by statute or rule. When more than one (1) officer sits at the hearing, they may all jointly be presiding officers or may designate one (1) of them to be the presiding officer. (7-1-93)

053. EX PARTE COMMUNICATIONS.

A presiding officer serving in a contested case shall not communicate, directly or indirectly, regarding any substantive issue in the contested case with any party, except upon notice and opportunity for all parties to participate in the communication. The presiding officer may communicate ex parte with a party concerning procedural matters (e.g., scheduling). (7-1-93)

RULES 054 THROUGH 056 -- PREHEARING CONFERENCES

054. PURPOSES OF PREHEARING CONFERENCES.

The presiding officer may by order or notice issued to all parties convene a prehearing conference in a contested case for the purposes of formulating or simplifying the issues, obtaining concessions of fact or identification of documents to avoid unnecessary proof, scheduling discovery (when discovery is allowed), arranging for the exchange of proposed exhibits or prepared testimony, limiting witnesses, discussing settlement offers or making settlement offers, scheduling hearings, establishing procedure at hearings, and addressing other matters that may expedite orderly conduct and disposition of the proceeding or its settlement. (7-1-93)

055. NOTICE OF PREHEARING CONFERENCE.

Notice of the place, date and hour of a prehearing conference will be served at least fourteen (14) days before the time set for the prehearing conference, unless the presiding officer finds it necessary or appropriate for the conference to be held earlier.

(7-1-93)

056. ORDERS RESULTING FROM PREHEARING CONFERENCE.

The presiding officer may issue a prehearing order or notice based upon the results of the agreements reached at or rulings made at a prehearing conference. A prehearing order will control the course of subsequent proceedings unless modified by the presiding officer for good cause.

(7-1-93)

RULES 057 THROUGH 064 -- DISCOVERY

057. KINDS AND SCOPE OF DISCOVERY LISTED.

The kinds of discovery recognized and authorized by these rules in contested cases are depositions, requests for admission, and subpoenas. (7-1-93)

058. WHEN DISCOVERY AUTHORIZED.

No party is entitled to engage in discovery unless the party moves to compel discovery and the agency issues an order directing that the discovery be allowed, or upon agreement of all parties to the discovery that discovery may be conducted. The presiding officer shall provide a schedule for discovery in the order compelling discovery, but the order compelling and scheduling discovery need not conform to the timetables of the Idaho Rules of Civil Procedure. The agency or agency staff may conduct statutory inspection, examination, investigation, etc., at any time without filing a motion to compel discovery. (7-1-93)

059. DEPOSITIONS.

Depositions may be taken in accordance with the Idaho Rules of Civil Procedure for any purpose allowed by statute, the Idaho Rules of Civil Procedure, or rule or order of the agency. (7-1-93)

060. REQUESTS FOR ADMISSION.

Requests for admission may be undertaken in accordance with the Idaho Rules of Civil Procedure for any purpose allowed by statute, the Idaho Rules of Civil Procedure, or rule or order of the agency. (7-1-93)

061. SUBPOENAS.

The agency may issue subpoenas as authorized by statute, upon a party's motion or upon its own initiative. The agency upon motion to quash made promptly, and in any event, before the time to comply with the subpoena, may

IDAPA 33.01.02 - Rules of Practice and Procedure of the Idaho Real Estate Commission Governing Contested Cases

quash the subpoena, or condition denial of the motion to quash upon reasonable terms.

(7-1-93)

062. NOTICE OF DEPOSITIONS, REQUESTS FOR ADMISSION, RESPONSES, OBJECTIONS TO REQUESTS FOR ADMISSION.

Notice of depositions, requests for admission, their response or objection, shall be filed or served as provided by the order compelling discovery. Responses must conform to the requirements of the Idaho Rules of Civil Procedure.

(7-1-93)

063. SANCTIONS FOR FAILURE TO OBEY ORDER COMPELLING DISCOVERY.

The agency may impose all sanctions recognized by statute or rules for failure to comply with an order compelling discovery. (7-1-93)

064. PROTECTIVE ORDERS.

As authorized by statute or rule, the agency may issue protective orders limiting access to information generated during settlement negotiations, discovery, or hearing. (7-1-93)

RULES 065 THROUGH 077 -- HEARINGS -- MISCELLANEOUS PROCEDURE

065. NOTICE OF HEARING.

Notice of the place, date and hour of hearing shall be served on all parties at least twenty-one (21) days before the time set for hearing, unless the agency finds by order that it is necessary or appropriate that the hearing be held earlier. Notices must comply with the requirements for pleadings under these rules. Notices must list the names of the parties (or the lead parties if the parties are too numerous to name), the case number or docket number, the names of the presiding officers who will hear the case, the name, address and telephone number of the person to whom inquires about scheduling, hearing facilities, etc., should be directed. The notice of hearing shall state that the hearing will be conducted under these rules of procedure and inform the parties where they may read or obtain a copy. (7-1-93)

066. HOW HEARINGS HELD.

Hearings may be held in person or by telephone or television or other electronic means, if each participant in the hearing has an opportunity to participate in the entire proceeding while it is taking place. (7-1-93)

067. CONDUCT AT HEARINGS.

All persons attending a hearing must conduct themselves in a respectful manner. Smoking is not permitted at hearings. (7-1-93)

068. PRELIMINARY PROCEDURE AT HEARING

Before taking evidence the presiding officer will call the hearing to order, take appearances of parties, and act upon any pending motions or petitions. The presiding officer may allow opening statements as necessary or appropriate to explain a party's presentation. (7-1-93)

069. STIPULATIONS.

Parties may stipulate among themselves to any fact at issue in a contested case by written statement filed with the presiding officer or presented at hearing or by oral statement at hearing. A stipulation binds all parties agreeing to it only according to its terms. The agency may regard a stipulation as evidence or may require proof by evidence of the facts stipulated. The agency is not bound to adopt a stipulation of the parties, but may do so. If the agency rejects a stipulation, it will do so before issuing a final order, and it will provide an additional opportunity for the parties to present evidence and arguments on the subject matter of the rejected stipulation.

(7-1-93)

070. ORDER OF PROCEDURE.

The presiding officer may determine the order of presentation of witnesses and examination of witnesses. (7-1-93)

071. TESTIMONY UNDER OATH.

All testimony presented in formal hearings will be given under oath. Before testifying each witness must swear or affirm that the testimony the witness will give before the agency is the truth, the whole truth, and nothing but the truth.

(7-1-93)

IDAPA 33.01.02 - Rules of Practice and Procedure of the Idaho Real Estate Commission Governing Contested Cases

072. PARTIES AND PERSONS WITH SIMILAR INTERESTS.

If two (2) or more parties or persons have substantially like interests or positions, to expedite the proceeding and avoid duplication, the presiding officer may limit the number of them who testify, examine witnesses, or make and argue motions and objections. (7-1-93)

073. CONTINUANCE OF HEARING.

The presiding officer may continue proceedings for further hearing.

(7-1-93)

074. RULINGS AT HEARINGS.

The presiding officer rules on motions and objections presented at hearing. When the presiding officer is a hearing officer, the presiding officer's rulings may be reviewed by the agency head in determining the matter on its merits and the presiding officer may refer or defer rulings to the agency head for determination. (7-1-93)

075. ORAL ARGUMENT.

The presiding officer may set and hear oral argument on any matter in the contested case on reasonable notice according to the circumstances. (7-1-93)

076. BRIEFS -- MEMORANDA -- PROPOSED ORDERS OF THE PARTIES -- STATEMENTS OF POSITION -- PROPOSED ORDER OF THE PRESIDING OFFICER.

In any contested case, any party may ask to file briefs, memoranda, proposed orders of the parties or statements of position, and the presiding officer may request briefs, proposed orders of the parties, or statements of position. The presiding officer may issue a proposed order and ask the parties for comment upon the proposed order. (7-1-93)

077. PROCEDURE ON PREHEARING MOTIONS.

The presiding officer may consider and decide prehearing motions with or without oral argument or hearing. If oral argument or hearing on a motion is requested and denied, the presiding officer must state the grounds for denying the request. Unless otherwise provided by the presiding officer, when a motion has been filed, all parties seeking similar substantive or procedural relief must join in the motion or file a similar motion within seven (7) days after receiving the original motion. The party(ies) answering to or responding to the motion(s) will have fourteen (14) days from the time of filing of the last motion or joinder pursuant to the requirements of the previous sentence in which to respond.

(7-1-93)

RULES 078 THROUGH 082 -- EVIDENCE IN CONTESTED CASES

078. RULES OF EVIDENCE -- EVALUATION OF EVIDENCE.

Evidence should be taken by the agency to assist the parties' development of a record, not excluded to frustrate that development. The presiding officer at hearing is not bound by the Idaho Rules of Evidence. No informality in any proceeding or in the manner of taking testimony invalidates any order. The presiding officer, with or without objection, may exclude evidence that is irrelevant, unduly repetitious, inadmissible on constitutional or statutory grounds, or on the basis of any evidentiary privilege provided by statute or recognized in the courts of Idaho. All other evidence may be admitted if it is of a type commonly relied upon by prudent persons in the conduct of their affairs. The agency's experience, technical competence and specialized knowledge may be used in evaluation of evidence.

(7-1-93)

079. DOCUMENTARY EVIDENCE.

Documentary evidence may be received in the form of copies or excerpts. Upon request, parties shall be given an opportunity to compare the copy with the original if available. (7-1-93)

080. OFFICIAL NOTICE -- AGENCY STAFF MEMORANDA.

Official notice may be taken of any facts that could be judicially noticed in the courts of Idaho. Parties shall be notified of the specific facts or material noticed and the source of the material noticed, including any agency staff memoranda and data. Parties must be given an opportunity to contest and rebut the facts or material officially noticed.

(7-1-93)

081. DEPOSITIONS.

Depositions may be offered into evidence.

(7-1-93)

082. OBJECTIONS.

Grounds for objection to the admission or exclusion of evidence must be stated briefly at the time the evidence is offered. When a party objects to the admission of evidence, the presiding officer will rule on the objection, or, if the presiding officer is a hearing officer, the presiding officer may receive the evidence subject to later ruling by the agency head or refer the matter to the agency head.

(7-1-93)

RULES 083 THROUGH 084 -- SETTLEMENTS

083. CONFIDENTIALITY OF SETTLEMENT NEGOTIATIONS.

Settlement negotiations in a contested case are confidential, unless all participants to the negotiation agree to the contrary in writing. Facts disclosed, offers made and all other aspects of negotiation (except agreements reached) in settlement negotiations in a contested case are not part of the record.

(7-1-93)

084. SETTLEMENT NOT BINDING.

The presiding officer is not bound by settlement agreements that are not unanimously accepted by all parties or that have significant implications for persons not parties. In these instances, the presiding officer will independently review any proposed settlement to determine whether the settlement is in accordance with the law. (7-1-93)

RULES 085 THROUGH 086 -- RECORD FOR DECISIONS

085. RECORD FOR DECISION.

801. Requirement. The agency shall maintain an official record for each contested case and (unless statute provides otherwise) base its decision in a contested case on the official record for the case. (7-1-93)

02.	Contents The record for a contested case shall include:	(7-1-93)

a.	All notices of pr	oceedings:	(7-1-93)

- b. All petitions, complaints, motions, and answers filed in the proceeding; (7-1-93)
- c. All intermediate or interlocutory rulings of hearing officers or the agency head; (7-1-93)
- d. All evidence received or considered (including all transcripts or recordings of hearings and all exhibits offered or identified at hearing); (7-1-93)
- e. All briefs, memoranda, proposed orders of the parties or of the presiding officers, statements of position, statements of support, and exceptions filed by parties or persons not parties; (7-1-93)
 - f. All evidentiary rulings on testimony, exhibits, or offers of proof; (7-1-93)
 - g. All staff memoranda or data submitted in connection with the consideration of the proceeding; (7-1-93)
 - h. A statement of matters officially noticed; and (7-1-93)
 - i. All recommended orders, final orders, and orders on reconsideration. (7-1-93)

086. RECORDING OF HEARINGS.

All hearings shall be recorded on audiotape or videotape at the agency's expense. The agency may provide for a transcript of the proceeding at its own expense. Any party may have a transcript prepared at its own expense. (7-1-93)

RULES 087 THROUGH 092 -- DEFAULTS, AGENCY ORDERS, AND REVIEW OF AGENCY ORDERS

087. DEFAULT PROCEEDINGS.

If the respondent fails to file an answer to a complaint or petition within the time required by these rules, or if a party fails to appear at the time and place set for hearing, upon proof of service upon the defaulting party, the presiding officer shall serve upon all parties notice of a proposed default order. The notice shall include a statement of the grounds for the proposed order. Within seven (7) days after service of the proposed order, the party against whom it was issued may file a written petition requesting the proposed order be vacated. The petition shall state the grounds relied upon. The presiding officer shall either issue or vacate the default order promptly after expiration of the time within which the party may file a petition. Notwithstanding the above, the presiding officer shall have authority to receive evidence at the hearing where a party fails to appear after having been served with notice of hearing. (7-1-93)

088. RECOMMENDED ORDERS.

- **O1. Definition.** Recommended orders are orders issued by a person other than the agency head that will become a final order of the agency only after review of the agency head (or the agency head's designee) pursuant to Section 67-5244, Idaho Code. (7-1-93)
- **02. Content.** Every recommended order must contain or be accompanied by a document containing the following paragraphs or substantially similar paragraphs: (7-1-93)
- a. This is a recommended order of the hearing officer. It will not become final without action of the agency head. Any party may file a petition for reconsideration of this recommended order with the hearing officer issuing the order within fourteen (14) days of the service date of this order. The hearing officer issuing this recommended order will dispose of any petition for reconsideration within twenty-one (21) days of its receipt, or the petition will be considered denied by operation of law. See Section 67-5243(3), Idaho Code. (7-1-93)
- b. Within twenty-one (21) days after (a) the service date of this recommended order, (b) the service date of a denial of a petition for reconsideration from this recommended order, or (c) the failure within twenty-one (21) days to grant or deny a petition for reconsideration from this recommended order, any party may in writing support or take exceptions to any part of this recommended order and file briefs in support of the party's position on any issue in the proceeding. (7-1-93)
- c. Written briefs in support of or taking exceptions to the recommended order shall be filed with the agency head (or designee of the agency head). Opposing parties shall have twenty-one (21) days to respond. The agency head or designee may schedule oral argument in the matter before issuing a final order. The agency head or designee will issue a final order within fifty-six (56) days of receipt of the written briefs or oral argument, whichever is later, unless waived by the parties or for good cause shown. The agency may remand the matter for further evidentiary hearings if further factual development of the record is necessary before issuing a final order. (7-1-93)
- **03. Findings And Conclusions**. Recommended orders shall include findings of fact and conclusions of law. Findings of fact, if set forth in statutory language, shall be accompanied by a concise and explicit statement of the underlying facts supporting the findings. (7-1-93)

089. FINAL ORDERS.

- **01. Definition**. Final orders are orders issued by the agency head pursuant to Section 67-5246, Idaho Code. (7-1-93)
- **02. Content.** Every final order issued by the agency head must contain or be accompanied by a document containing the following paragraphs or substantially similar paragraphs: (7-1-93)
- a. This is a final order of the agency. Any party may file a motion for reconsideration of this final order within fourteen (14) days of the service date of this order. The agency will dispose of the petition for reconsideration within twenty-one (21) days of its receipt, or the petition will be considered denied by operation of law. See Section 67-5246(4), Idaho Code. (7-1-93)

IDAPA 33.01.02 - Rules of Practice and Procedure of the Idaho Real Estate Commission Governing Contested Cases

b. Pursuant to Sections 67-5270 and 67-5272, Idaho Code, any party aggrieved by this final order or orders previously issued in this case may appeal this final order and all previously issued orders in this case to district court by filing a petition in the district court of the county in which:

(7-1-93)

i.	A hearing was held:	(7-	-1-93)
1.	11 Hearing was held,	()	1 ///

- ii. The final agency action was taken; or (7-1-93)
- iii. The party seeking review of the order resides. (7-1-93)
- c. An appeal must be filed within twenty-eight (28) days (a) of the service date of this final order, (b) of an order denying petition for reconsideration, or (c) the failure within twenty-one (21) days to grant or deny a petition for reconsideration, whichever is later. See Section 67-5273, Idaho Code. The filing of an appeal to district court does not itself stay the effectiveness or enforcement of the order under appeal. (7-1-93)
- **03. Findings And Conclusions**. Recommended orders shall include findings of fact and conclusions of law. Findings of fact, if set forth in statutory language, shall be accompanied by a concise and explicit statement of the underlying facts supporting the findings. (7-1-93)

090. MODIFICATION OF ORDER ON PRESIDING OFFICER'S OWN MOTION.

A hearing officer issuing a recommended order may modify the recommended order on the hearing officer's own motion within fourteen (14) days after issuance of the recommended order by withdrawing the recommended order and issuing a substitute recommended order. The agency head may modify or amend a final order of the agency at any time before notice of appeal to district court has been filed or the expiration of the time for appeal to district court, whichever is earlier, by withdrawing the earlier final order and substituting a new final order for it. (7-1-93)

091. CLARIFICATION OF ORDERS.

Any party or person affected by an order may petition to clarify any order, whether recommended or final. Petitions for clarification from final orders do not suspend or toll the time to petition for reconsideration or appeal the order. A petition for clarification may be combined with a petition for reconsideration or stated in the alternative as a petition for clarification and/or reconsideration. (7-1-93)

092. STAY OF ORDERS.

Any party or person affected by an order may petition the agency to stay any order, whether interlocutory or final. Interlocutory or final orders may be stayed by the judiciary according to statute. The agency may stay any interlocutory or final order on its own motion. (7-1-93)

RULES 093 THROUGH 094 -- APPEAL TO DISTRICT COURT

093. PERSONS WHO MAY APPEAL.

Pursuant to Section 67-5270, Idaho Code, any party aggrieved by a final order of an agency in a contested case may appeal to district court. Pursuant to Section 67-5271, Idaho Code, a person is not entitled to judicial review of an agency action in district court until that person has exhausted all administrative remedies available with the agency, but a preliminary, procedural, or intermediate agency action or ruling is immediately reviewable in district court if review of the final agency action would not provide an adequate remedy. (7-1-93)

094. NOTICE OF APPEAL.

The notice of appeal must be filed with the agency and with the district court and served on all parties. (7-1-93)

01. Filing. Pursuant to Section 67-5272, Idaho Code, appeals may be filed in the district court of the county in which:

a. The hearing was held; (7-1-93)

b. The final agency action was taken; or (7-1-93)

IDAPA 33.01.02 - Rules of Practice and Procedure of the Idaho Real Estate Commission Governing Contested Cases

- c. The party seeking review of the agency action resides. (7-1-93)
- **02. Time**. Pursuant to Section 67-5273, Idaho Code, a petition for judicial review of a final order in a contested case must be filed within twenty-eight (28) days: (7-1-93)
 - a. Of the service date of the final order; (7-1-93)
 - b. Of the denial of the petition for reconsideration; or (7-1-93)
 - c. The failure within twenty-one (21) days to grant or deny the petition for reconsideration. (7-1-93)

095. -- 199. (RESERVED).

RULE 200 -- RULEMAKING

200. RULEMAKING.

All procedural matters of rulemaking by or before the Idaho Real Estate Commission shall be governed by IDAPA 04.11.01.800 et seq., "Idaho Rules of Administrative Procedure of the Attorney General". (7-1-93)

201. -- 999. (RESERVED).

Subject Index

${f A}$	Documentary Evidence 15	License 4
Administrative Code 4	${f E}$	M
Agency 4	Ex Parte Communications 13	Modification Of Order On Presiding
Agency Head 4	Executive Director 4	Officer's Own Motion 18
Amendments To Pleadings 11	Executive Director 4	Motions Defined Form And
Answers Defined Form And	${f F}$	Contents 9
Contents Time For Filing 9	Fees And Remittances, To The Real	Contents 9
Answers To Motions 9	Estate Commission 6	${f N}$
Answers To Pleadings Other Than	Filing Documents With The Agency	Notice Of Appeal 18
Motions 9	Facsimile Transmission (Fax) 10	Notice Of Depositions, Requests For
Appearances And Representation, At	Filing Of Documents Number Of	Admission, Responses, Objections
Hearings 7	Copies, All Documents To Be Filed	To Requests For Admission 14
Appointment Of Hearing Officers 12	With The Idaho Real Eastate	Notice Of Hearing, Twenty-One Days
	Commission 5	Prior To Actual Hearing 14
B	Final Agency Action 11	Notice Of Petition For Declaratory
Briefs Memoranda Proposed Orders	Final Orders 17	Ruling 11
Of The Parties Statements Of	Findings And Conclusions, Final	Notice Of Prehearing Conference 13
Position Proposed Order Of The	Orders 18	
Presiding Officer 15	Findings And Conclusions,	0
C	Recommended Orders 17	Objections 16
Chairman 4	Form And Contents Of Petition For	Office Office Hours Mailing Address And Street Address, Idaho
Clarification Of Orders 18	Declaratory Rulings 11	
Commission 4	Form And Contents Of Petitions To	Real Eastate Commission 5
Communications With Agency, Real	Intervene 11	Official Notice Agency Staff
Estate Commission 6	Form Of Pleadings 10	Memoranda 15
Complainants, Parties To Contested	Formal Proceedings 6	Oral Argument 15 Order 5
Cases 7	\mathbf{G}	Order Granting Intervention
Complaints Defined Form And	Granting Petitions To Intervene 11	Necessary 11
Contents 8	Granting Fettions To Intervene 11	Order Of Procedure 14
Computation Of Time 6	Н	Orders Resulting From Prehearing
Conduct At Hearings 14	Hearing Officer 4	Conference 13
Conduct Required, Appearing At	How Hearings Held, In Person, By	Conference 15
Hearings 8	Telephone, Television Or Other	P
Confidentiality Of Settlement	Electronic Means 14	Parties And Persons With Similar
Negotiations 16	Ţ	Interests 15
Consent Agreements Defined Form	Informal Proceedings, Encouraged By	Parties To Contested Cases Listed 6
And Contents 9	Agency 6	Party 5
Contested Case 4	Initial Pleading By Party Listing Of	Person 5
Continuance Of Hearing 15	Representatives 7	Persons Who May Appeal 18
D	Intervenors, Parties To Contested	Petitioners, Parties To Contested
Default Proceedings 17	Cases 7	Cases 6
Defective, Insufficient Or Late		Petitions Defined Form And
Pleadings 11	K	Contents 8
Definitions, IDAPA 33.01.02 4	Kinds And Scope Of Discovery	Petitions For Declaratory Rulings To Be
Depositions, May Be Offered Into	Listed 13	Decided By Order 11
Evidence 15	${f L}$	Petitions, Petitions Defined Form
Depositions, Taken In Accordance With	Legal Assertions, May Be Accompanied	And Contents 8
The Idaho Rules Of Civil	By Citations Of Cases 11	Pleadings Defined, Petitions Defined
Procedure 13	Liberal Construction, To Secure Just,	- Form And Contents 8
Disqualification Of Officers Hearing	Speedy And Economical	Pleadings Listed Miscellaneous 8
Contested Cases 12	Determination Of All Issues 6	Preliminary Procedure At Hearing 14
	Determination of fill Issues 0	Presiding Officer(s), Hearings 13

Subject Index (Cont'd)

Procedure On Prehearing Motions 15
Proof Of Service 10
Protective Orders, Agency May
Issue 14
Provision Of Law 5
Purposes Of Prehearing
Conferences 13

R

Recommended Orders 17 Record For Decision 16 Recording Of Hearings 16 Reference To Agency, Includes The Commission, Executive Director Or Hearing Officer 6 Representation Of Parties At Hearing 7 Representatives, At Hearings 7 Requests For Admission, In Accordance With The Idaho Rules Of Civil Procedure 13 Requirements For Submission Of Forms, Pleadings 10 Respondents, Parties To Contested Cases 7 Rights Of Parties And Of Agency Staff 7 Rule 5 Rules Of Evidence -- Evaluation Of Evidence 15 Rulings At Hearings 15

S

Sanctions For Failure To Obey Order
Compelling Discovery 14
Scope Of Authority Of Hearing
Officers 12
Service By Agency, May Serve
Summonses, Complaints, And Other
Documents By Certified Mail 6
Service On Parties And Other
Persons 10
Service On Representatives Of Parties
And Other Persons 7
Settlement Not Binding 16
Stay Of Orders 18
Stipulations 14
Subpoenas, Agency May Issue 13

Т

Taking Of Appearances -- Participation By Agency Staff 7 Testimony Under Oath 14 Timely Filing Of Petitions To Intervene 11

W

When Discovery Authorized 13 Withdrawal Of Parties, Form Proceeding 8